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In Memory of Aharon Sheer, "˪ʕ (1936-2015) 
¢Ƙƛǎ ƳƻƴǘƘΣ ǿŜΩǊŜ taking another pause in our άAliensέ series to bring you a special issue in 
ŎƻƳƳŜƳƻǊŀǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ !ƘŀǊƻƴ {ƘŜŜǊ όȊέƭύ ǿƘƻ ǇŀǎǎŜŘ ŀǿŀȅ ƭŀǎǘ ȅŜŀǊΦ IŜ ǿŀǎ ǘƘŜ ƭŜƎŜƴŘŀǊȅ ŜŘƛǘƻǊ ƻŦ 
CyberCozen for almost 27 years, and founder of the Rehovot Science Fiction Club (RFSC ς 1989) ς 
that at the time was the only club of its kind in Israel. 

 

Some early logos (RFSC + CyberCozen): 
1989 

 
1990 

 
1991 (Jun) 

 
1991 (Nov) 

 
 
But before we get to ǘƘŀǘΣ ǎƻƳŜ ŦŜŜŘōŀŎƪ ƻƴ ƭŀǎǘ ƳƻƴǘƘΩǎ ƛǎǎǳŜ in memory of Leonard Nimoy 
όȊέƭύ ϧ celebrating 50 years of Star Trek: 
From:  R GRAEME CAMERON  

Sent: Friday, April 1, 2016 9:58 PM 

Subject: Re: CyberCozen (monthly SF fanzine) - April 2016 issue [Leonard Nimoy (z"l) + 50 years Star Trek] 

Hi Leybl! 

Thank you for sending me this commemorative issue.  

Leaving my article apart, I must say the other articles are excellent, making this the best tribute zine to 

Leonard "Spock" Nimoy I've seen. Jolly good work.  

As a long time fan of "Spock" I'm very pleased. 

Cheers!  Graeme 

http://www.google.com/calendar/embed?src=lff22lugjf5jocuqm24ovs1uio@group.calendar.google.com&ctz=Asia/Jerusalem
http://www.google.com/calendar/embed?src=lff22lugjf5jocuqm24ovs1uio@group.calendar.google.com&ctz=Asia/Jerusalem
mailto:isfsffbookclub@gmail.com
mailto:isfsffbookclub@gmail.com
https://www.facebook.com/isfsff
https://www.facebook.com/isfsff
https://www.facebook.com/isfsff
http://www.sf-f.org.il/
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R Graeme Cameron is the editor/publisher of the Canadian SF fanzine OBIR (http://www.obirmagazine.ca/ ), 

writes for “Amazing Stories” (see his bio here: http://amazingstoriesmag.com/authors/r-graeme-cameron/ ) and 

is heavily involved in the Canadian SF scene, particularly with the VCON SF convention (http://vcon.ca/).  

 
From:  Gary Roth  

Sent: Friday, April 1, 2016 4:33 PM 

Subject: Re: CyberCozen (monthly SF fanzine) - April 2016 issue [Leonard Nimoy (z"l) + 50 years Star Trek] 

Really great issue -- thanks !  It was worth waiting for. 

 
Hey there, Leybl!  

 

Once again, a wonderful issue devoted to the memory of Leonard Nimoy. It was all very wonderfully 

produced, and I wish I could have had the chance to meet him at some point during my fannish career, but alas, 

that was never to occur. Even so, it is a blessing to have his work remain and have it entertain, inspire, and 

teach us.  

Of the articles in this issue, I truly enjoyed all of them, but the story by Miriam Shmulevich-Hoffman is my 

favorite. It certainly sounds like something that Nimoy would certainly do: he always struck me as a man of 

principles and deeply held beliefs.  

I also agree with Richard Graeme Cameron about how Star Trek rekindled my love for the science fiction 

genre, although I think the show more likely illustrated how science fiction could be used intelligently on 

television. Despite the obvious Hollywood treatment - handsome leading man, fearless captain, etcetera - and 

the inevitable dwindling resources and gawd-awful scripts, Star Trek still tackled important topics and issues 

that faced us in the 1960s and always will, sad to say. It was a landmark show, no question.  

 

Oh, I simply adored Mad Magazine's "Star Bleccch" parody. It was brilliant, and ranks as one of their best 

efforts. Ever. 

 

The "50 Years of Star Trek" article proves a simple fact: that this program, and everything that it stood for, 

shall continue in one way, shape, or form. More than anything, I believe the show gave us hope in humanity, 

probably now more than ever since we are constantly inundated by man's inhumanity to man. Can the human 

race rise above its petty squabbles and selfish interests? Possibly not. But then again, it could very well be that 

those negative traits shall act as catalysts for positive change. We can only hope. And that is probably all we 

could ever ask of ourselves. 

 

An excellent issue, Leybl, and I thank you for it. I definitely look forward to next month's issue. 

Live long and prosper, 

John Purcell 

 
John Purcell is the editor/publisher of the American SF fanzines Askew (paper-only) and Askance 

(http://www.efanzines.com/Prior/index.htm ).  

 
[Always glad to receive feedback ς it 
strengthens my belief that there may actually be 
intelligent life somewhere out there in that vast 
virtually unexplored empty space between our 
ears, and beyond the millions of dumbphones, 
boob tubes, and flaptop computers Χ - LB] 
 

 
And an ominous (sounding) message 
[TO YOUR RIGHT] related to our  
previous AI run of issues: 
!L ǿƻƴΩǘ ƪƛƭƭ YOU ς but it may  
help YOU get an early inheritance  

http://www.obirmagazine.ca/
http://amazingstoriesmag.com/authors/r-graeme-cameron/
http://vcon.ca/
http://www.efanzines.com/Prior/index.htm
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Next up: Some ƻŦ !ƘŀǊƻƴ {ƘŜŜǊΩǎ biting satire and wit, as we look back at the early days of the 

Rehovot Science Fiction Club (RSFC) and the first 5 years of the CyberCozen monthly fanzine. 
 
This being a purely volunteer effort, I can surely sympathize with !ƘŀǊƻƴΩǎ call for more articles, feedback, 
etc. In fact, he did a lot more. In addition to CyberCozen, he also organized monthly get-togethers with an 
ŀǊǊŀȅ ƻŦ ŜȄŎŜƭƭŜƴǘ ǎǇŜŀƪŜǊǎ ƻƴ ŦŀǎŎƛƴŀǘƛƴƎ ǘƻǇƛŎǎΦ !ƴŘ ƛŦ ǘƘŀǘ ǿŀǎƴΩǘ ŀƭƭΣ ƘŜ ŀƭǎƻ ƴŜŜŘŜŘ ǘƻ ǇƘȅǎƛŎŀƭƭȅ ǇǊƛƴǘ ƻǳǘΣ 
photocopy the CyberCozen issue in multiple copies, collate them, pack them into envelopes, address and 
stamp them, ŀƴŘ ǎŜƴŘ ǘƘŜƳ ƻǳǘ όŜȄŎŜǇǘ ŦƻǊ ǎƻƳŜ ǘƘŀǘ ǿŜǊŜ ƘŀƴŘ ŘŜƭƛǾŜǊŜŘ ǘƻƻΧύ ς and who was to pay for 
ǘƘŜ ǇƻǎǘŀƎŜΚ Χ [ŜǘΩǎ see what he had to say about this. 
From the RSFC bulletin of November, 1989: 
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!ǎƛŘŜ ŦǊƻƳ ōŜƛƴƎ ŀ ΨōƭƻƻŘ-ǎǳŎƪŜǊΩ ώƘŜ ǿŀǎ ƳŀǘǳǊŜ ŜƴƻǳƎƘ ǘƻ ōŜ ŀōƭŜ ǘƻ ƭŀǳƎƘ ŀǘ ƘƛƳǎŜƭŦ ŀƴŘ ƴƻǘ ƎŜǘ ŀƴƎǊȅ 
ŀǘ ƘƛƳǎŜƭŦ ΧϐΣ !ƘŀǊƻƴ ƘŀŘ ŀ ǿƻƴŘŜǊŦǳƭΣ ƛŦ ƴƻǘ ōƛǘƛƴƎΣ ǎŜƴǎŜ ƻŦ ƘǳƳƻǳǊΦ 
!ƘŀǊƻƴ ŘƛŘƴΩǘ Ǉǳƭƭ ǇǳƴŎƘŜǎ ς especiaƭƭȅ ǿƘŜƴ ƘŜ ŘƛŘƴΩǘ ǎŜŜ ŜȅŜ-to-ŜȅŜ ǿƛǘƘ ƻǘƘŜǊ ǇŜƻǇƭŜΩǎ ƛŘŜŀǎΦ ¢ƻ ōŜ ŦŀƛǊΣ 
however, he did publish them JΦ IŜǊŜΩǎ ŀƴ ŜȄŀƳǇƭŜ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ aŀȅ мффо ƛǎǎǳŜΥ 

 
Χ and he went on to describe each person and his/her viewpoint.  
 
IŜǊŜΩǎ Ƙƛǎ Ŏŀƭƭ ŦƻǊ ǾƻƭǳƴǘŜŜǊǎΣ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ 5ŜŎŜƳōŜǊ мффм ƛǎǎǳŜ ƻŦ /ȅōŜǊ/ƻȊŜƴ όǘƘŜ ŜŀǊƭȅ ƛǎǎǳŜǎ ŘƛŘƴΩǘ ŀƭways 
have a graphic logo, and it took a few years until it stabilized into the one we use now ς created by the late 
Miriam Ben-Lulu): 

 
Throughout the various issues, other than regular contributors 
on articles in English and Hebrew, the late Miriam Ben-Lulu 
would enhance the texts with her wonderful graphics (here is 
one, and we plan to re-publish more in the coming issues), as 
weƭƭ ŀǎ ŀ ƘǳƳƻǳǊƻǳǎ ŎƻƭǳƳƴ ōȅ ά{ŀlŀŎƛƻǳǎ {ŀƭέ ǿƘƻ ǿƻǳƭŘ 
offer advice on any number of problems (life, love, etc.) ς 
including our very own Aharon who bemoaned his unthankful 
situation, and sought salvation from Salacious Sal.  
From the December 1994 issue, we have: 
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hǊ όƘŜǊŜΩǎ ǎƻƳŜǘƘƛƴƎ ŦǊŜǎƘύ, occasionally ς I guess as a filler ς Aharon would insert a real ad and then 
follow it up with some funtastic stuff he ƳŀŘŜ ǳǇΦ IŜǊŜΩǎ ŀƴ ŜȄŀƳǇƭŜ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ hŎǘƻōŜǊ мффо ƛǎǎǳŜΥ 
 

 
And another one from November 1993:  

 
And here he is again (June 1994), not pulling any punches and really hammering on Mordechai who, I 
ŀǎǎǳƳŜΣ ǿŀǎ ŀ ƎƻƻŘ ŦǊƛŜƴŘΣ ŜƭǎŜ ƘŜ ǿƻǳƭŘƴΩǘ ƘŀǾŜ ƎƻǘǘŜƴ ŀǿŀȅ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘƛǎΧ  

 

*    **    ***    **    *  
The February 1994 issue, marked the first five years of the club. This momentous moment was 
commemorated by a Ψspecial issueΩ ς when in fact, other than the few lines he wrote and a congratulatory 
letter, there was nothing special about this particular issue. That having been said, the 20th year issue is 
more interesting ς but weΩll bring you that at some future time. Here is the clipping from Feb 1994: 
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In September (or October) 1999, Aharon was invited to the annual ICON fest as special guest of honour. To 
commemorate that special event, he published a special issue that included highlights of the first 9-10 
years of the RFSC. It can be seen here, on the CyberCozen repository: 
http://www.kulichki.com/antimiry/cybercozen/files/1999/CCSEICON99.pdf 
 

And reprinted here: 
 

 

http://www.kulichki.com/antimiry/cybercozen/files/1999/CCSEICON99.pdf
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TƘŀǘΩǎ ŀƭƭ ŦƻǊ ƴƻǿΦ Lƴ ǳǇŎƻƳƛƴƎ /ȅōŜǊ/ƻȊŜƴǎΣ LΩƭƭ ǘǊȅ ǘƻ ǊŜǇǊƛƴǘ ƳƻǊŜ ǎǘǳŦŦ ōȅ !ƘŀǊƻƴ ς and others, that may 
be of interest to our readers (and to future academics/historians studying the development of CyberCozen 
ŀƴŘ {C ƛƴ LǎǊŀŜƭ ŀƴŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ¦ƴƛǾŜǊǎŜύΦ ¦Ǉ ƴŜȄǘΣ ƛǎ ŀƴ ŜȄŀƳǇƭŜΧ 
 

*    **    ***    **    *  
Before we continue on ǘƻ 5ƻǊƻƴ /ŀƭƻΩǎ ƴŜǿ άSheer Scienceέ ŀǊǘƛŎƭŜΣ ƘŜǊŜΩǎ ǎƻƳŜ ŦŀǎŎƛƴŀǘƛƴƎ ǎǘǳŦŦ LΩŘ ƭƛƪŜ ǘƻ 
pass on to you, some of which was discovered as I was preparing this issue ς concerning his previous 
column about Silicon based life. In the sŀƳŜ 5ŜŎŜƳōŜǊ мффм ƛǎǎǳŜ ǇƛŎǘǳǊŜŘ ŀōƻǾŜ όŎƻƴŎŜǊƴƛƴƎ !ƘŀǊƻƴΩǎ Ŏŀƭƭ 
for volunteers), we have the following comment by Russian born SF writer and long-time CyberCozen 
collaborator, Leonid Resnick: 

 
 
.ǳǘ ǿŀƛǘΣ ǘƘŜǊŜΩǎ ƳƻǊŜ ǘƘŀǘ L ƘŀǾŜ ǘƻ ŀŘŘΧ LŦ 5ƴŜǇǊƻǾΩǎ Russian story seems to be a ground-breaker, there 
is a Yiddish short story that predates even him. In 1929 (??) 5ŜǊ bƛǎǘŜǊ ώҐέǘƘŜ ƘƛŘŘŜƴ ƻƴŜέΣ ǇǎŜǳŘƻƴȅƳ ƻŦ 
the Russian Yiddish author Pinchus Kahanovich (one of the many Jewish intellectuals murdered by Stalin) ς 
see https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Der_Nister ] wrote a biting satire/fantasy of an entire city made up of 
glass people ς IΩll try and do a write-up in an upcoming issue (and also try to locate the July 1991 issue that 
Resnick relates to. 
 
And while weΩre on the subject, the Jewish άGolem of Pragueέ, circa late 16th-century was made of mud ς 
shouldnΩt that count as a (partly) silica-based life-form of sorts? See https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Golem  . 

  

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Der_Nister
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Golem
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Sheer* Science: Venus anyone?! 
(* In memory of Aharon Sheer (ã"Ý) – Founding Editor) 

- Prepared by: Doron Calo*, PhD          (*our CC Sheer Science editor J) 
 

Venus: Back to the Forgotten Planet 
The planet Venus used to be a popular destination in science fiction stories. That’s hardly a 

surprise – after all, Venus is the closest planet to Earth, and is also similar in terms of mass 

and density. Everyone was keen to find out what’s beneath the thick cloud layer; SF’s finest 

writers, from Edgar Rice Burroughs to Isaac Asimov, imagined it as a tropical jungle 

filled with wild creatures and exotic civilizations.  

 
 

Some writers who didn’t buy the jungle version of the planet thought it might actually be a 

dusty desert. The Soviets maintained that it might be a water world – and designed probes 

that would penetrate the clouds and then land in an ocean. It probably was quite a nasty 

surprise when the first Russian robotic probe reached Venus in 1967 and was faced with 

such harsh atmospheric conditions that it was annihilated long before it reached the 

planet’s surface. 

 

Venus, however, turned out to be exotic in 

quite a different way than was first 

imagined in science fiction. Today, we 

know that the environmental conditions 

seem mostly unsupportable of any sort of 

life: extreme pressure and 

temperatures, and an atmosphere mostly 

made up of CO2 (and those nice clouds? 

They turn out to be made up of sulfuric 

acid!). It’s not really surprising, then, that 

Venus’s popularity has been in decline 

ever since, and especially since more 

appealing candidates for exploration seem 

more available (Mars, anyone?). The last 

American probe visited the planet over 20 

years ago, and a European craft observed 

it from a distance until 2014. It looked as 

though humanity was ready to forget 

about Venus altogether and focus on more 

pressing matters. 

 

Fortunately, an unexpected plot twist 

brings Venus back to the center of 

attention, albeit sluggishly. The Japanese 

probe Akatsuki  has recently achieved 

orbit around the planet against all odds. A 

massive engine failure in 2010 made the 

engineers at JAXA  (Japan Aerospace 

Exploration Agency) scramble for a 

solution to prevent the probe from 
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entering an orbit around the Sun instead 

of Venus. The alternative route delayed 

the probe’s arrival by 5 years, and the 

final orbit was quite wider than originally 

planned, but it did arrive. 

And upon arrival, about 4 months ago, it 

began sending out interesting data.  

 

One of the most conspicuous findings is 

that the planet’s sulfuric clouds look bow-

shaped when observed more closely. 

These clouds seem to move relatively 

slowly; this may mean that the clouds are 

locked to ground features such as 

mountains or canyons, although no one 

knows what might cause such a 

phenomenon.  

 

This joins a host of other mysteries that 

scientists were aware of, for some time: 

The atmosphere of Venus contains an 

unknown substance that absorbs UV 

light; The planet’s surface is mysteriously 

young, and although it’s known to feature 

volcanoes, we don’t know whether they’re 

active or not; It generates fantastic winds 

for no apparent reason; And did I mention 

that the whole planet rotates in the 

opposite direction to Earth? 

 

And putting the mysterious phenomena 

aside, studying Venus might have some 

substantial benefits. Life could 

theoretically exist in the upper reaches of 

its atmosphere, but we’ll never know for 

sure unless we send out more probes. 

 

More importantly, finding out the deep history of Venus’s hellish conditions might teach us 

humans an important lesson on global warming and its potentially catastrophic outcome (it 

is thought that the present conditions on the planet are a result of a greenhouse effect gone 

berserk).  

 

NASA must be convinced that these reasons can merit subsequent missions to Venus, two 

of which are actually in the pipeline (the VERITAS  radar mapper and the DAVINCI  

probe). Assuming that interesting findings will continue to trickle in from the resurrected 

Japanese probe, a new mission to Venus could be launched around 2020 – I’ve got my 

fingers crossed! 

 

Links: 

The Akatsuki orbiter on the JAXA website: 

http://global.jaxa.jp/projects/sat/planet_c/ 

 

An editorial in Nature magazine: 

http://www.nature.com/news/destination-venus-1.19743 

 

NEXT MONTH: Back to Business as Usual! 
  
 

 

Weôd love to hear your thoughts on any of the above subjects and we may publish some of them! 
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